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January 6, 2025 

Board of Teton County Commissioners 

c/o Kim Keely, County Clerk 

150 Courthouse Drive  

Driggs Idaho 83422 

Via email to:  commissioners@tetoncountyidaho.gov 

  clerk@tetoncountyidaho.gov 

 

 RE: Request for Reconsideration - Area of City Impact of Victor Update and Rezone 

 

Dear Teton County Commissioners: 

 Givens Pursley LLP represents Victor Outpost LLC (“Outpost”), and we respectfully 

request the Commissioners reconsider its approval of the amended Victor Area of Impact (“AOI”) 

and associated property rezone. The request is made pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6535 and Teton 

County Land Development Code (“LDC”) 4-15. The specific decision for which Outpost seeks 

reconsideration is the County’s written decision issued on December 23, 2024 regarding the AOI 

boundary change and the rezone of Teton County parcel nos. RP04N45E356749, 

RP04N45E355250, RP04N45E354650, RP04N45E352850 (collectively, the “Property”) from 

AOI-2.5 to RR-20 (the “Decision”). 

A copy of the Decision is attached 

hereto as Exhibit A.1  

 

 This request asks the Teton 

County Board of County 

Commissioners (“BOCC”) to 

reconsider its Decision and zone the 

Property RN-5. Reconsideration is 

proper because the Decision does not 

meet the statutory requirements for a 

written decision, making it difficult to 

determine what criteria the BOCC 

relied upon in rezoning the Property. 

Additionally, the Property does not 

meet the County’s rezone criteria to 

be zoned RR-20, and should be zoned 

RN-5. 

 
1 A signed copy of the Decision was not available at the time of the submittal of this Request for Reconsideration.  
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I. Background 

 As depicted above, the Property consists of four 40-acre parcels which were previously 

located with the Victor Area of Impact (AOI), and zoned AOI-2.5 (Area of Impact, Zone 1). 

Pursuant to the Decision and associated ordinance, the Property has been removed from the Victor 

AOI and rezoned to RR-20. Outpost objects to the rezone of its Property.  

The City of Victor (“City”) and Teton County (the “County”) held several meetings to 

discuss the various amendments to Victor AOI and to rezone certain land. At the culmination of 

these meetings, the BOCC adopted the updated Victor AOI boundaries and rezoned certain land, 

including the Property.  

 

II. Reconsideration is proper because the Decision fails to meet statutory 

requirements, and upon proper application of the statutory criteria, the Property 

should be zoned RN-5. 

Reconsideration is warranted because the Decision does not contain the reasoning of the 

BOCC as required by statute and, upon proper application of the correct criteria, improperly 

rezones the Property to RR-20.  

a. The Property should be zoned RN-5 in conformance with the surrounding areas and 

the Teton Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 4-4 of the LDC provides the standards and criteria applicable to large-scale revision 

of the official zoning map. It requires an application, notice2, public hearing, and written findings. 

While the criteria related to a large-scale revision of the official zoning map are not set forth in the 

LDC, those criteria are included within I.C. § 67-6511(2)(b), which requires consideration of the 

comprehensive plan and other evidence gathered through the public hearing process. Similarly, 

Section 4-5 of the LDC includes the criteria for site-specific zoning map amendments. Criteria 

include, among other things, that the rezone not conflict with the comprehensive plan, that the 

amendment substantially conform to the stated purpose and intent of the LDC, and that there is a 

lack of a demonstrable adverse impact on properties in the vicinity of the subject property. 

In making zoning determinations, both state law and the LDC require general conformance 

with the comprehensive plan. Nothing has changed in the comprehensive plan – it has not been 

amended. No findings have been made showing that the prior AOI-2.5 zoning (nor the Applicant’s 

proposed RN-5 zoning) did not comply with the comprehensive plan or that the new zoning 

designation is more in compliance with the comprehensive plan.  

 
2 Applicant also maintains that notice was deficient because Applicant failed to receive notice as required by law for 

the prior public hearings before the City and County, and only received proper notice of the final hearing on 

December 16.  



 

 

 

The LDC provides that “the 

classification of land within Zoning Districts 

shall be done in accordance with the 

comprehensive plan. The comprehensive plan 

should be adhered to in the implementation of 

the LDC….”3 The comprehensive plan 

designates the Property as Rural 

Neighborhood. Rural Neighborhood is 

described as follows: 

 

Rural Neighborhoods are located north 

of Driggs and Victor along Highway 33. 

These areas currently include a mix of 

developed residential subdivision, 

undeveloped residential lots, and some 

commercial and light industrial 

development…. Desired future 

character and land uses for the Rural 

Neighborhoods include: 

• A transitional character in between 

that of Town Neighborhoods and Rural 

Areas 

• Medium density single family 

neighborhoods with large open spaces and provision for clustering  

• Amenity-based neighborhoods 

• Safe and convenient street and pathway connections within these areas and, 

when practical, to Towns 

• Well-defined open space areas that connect to provide corridors 

• A clear distinction between residential development and open 

space/agricultural areas.   

 

The AOI 2.5 and RN-5 zoning districts meet this purpose statement for Rural 

Neighborhood-designated property. The RR-20 zoning district does not.  

 

The Property conformed and continues to conform to the comprehensive plan’s Rural 

Neighborhood designation and to meet all statutory requirements to be zoned RN-5. RR-20 zoning 

does not adhere to the Comprehensive Plan Framework Map (PLUM), shown above.  

 

Additionally, the Property is located adjacent to land that receive City-owned utilities4 and 

the City has stated that it anticipates that the City will grow to include the Property5. Further, the 

Property is located on the busy Highway 33 corridor, and smaller lot subdivisions are located in 

 
3 LDC § 1-3.D. 
4 BOCC Staff Report dated October 28, 2024, page 14.  
5 Id. Page 8. 



 

 

the direct vicinity to the north, south, east and west. The land surrounding this newly zoned area 

to the north, east and west are all zoned RN-5. Zoning the Property RN-5 is entirely consistent 

with the development of the surrounding area.  

 

As discussed above, a rezone of land must meet certain statutory criteria. However, the 

discussion by the Commissioners indicated that the rezone was not based on applicable statutory 

criteria but rather on the Commissioner’s own thoughts and feelings about the rezone. For example, 

at the hearing on December 16, Commissioner Riegel stated that since the Applicant had no current 

plans for development of the Property, he could just come back in the future and get it rezoned 

again for a particular project. This is not a legal basis to rezone the Property to RR-20.  

 

Reconsideration is warranted because the BOCC failed to apply the appropriate criteria to 

the facts. 

b. The Decision lacks the reasoned statement required by State law prior to rezoning the 

Property. 

 A large-scale revision to the official zoning map requires a written decision under both the 

LDC and State law. In issuing its Decision, the BOCC did not address the applicable criteria for 

approval as required by Idaho Code § 67-6535.6 The Decision is devoid any reasoning, facts relied 

upon by the BOCC or the application of the requirements and criteria. Rather, the Decision 

includes a section on the procedural background, an outline of the hearing dates and meetings held 

the City of Victor and Teton County, the motion that was made at the hearing on December 16, 

and a conclusion. There is no discussion of any facts, statutory requirements or criteria, or the 

application of those facts to statutory criteria.  

It is unclear what reasoning, if any, resulted in the significant downzone of the Property. 

The Decision lacks any discussion or analysis of the criteria used to support the rezone and how 

those criteria were met or the facts relied upon on making the zoning amendment. This is legally 

insufficient, and reconsideration is warranted on this basis alone.  

c. The Decision does not separate the findings required for each of the three separate 

actions it purports to take.  

Further, the Decision purports to (i) amend the Victor AOI boundaries, (ii) rezone the 

Property and surrounding lands, and (iii) adopt a new land development code. Although it may be 

possible (albeit difficult) to include each of these three topics within one decision, each of these 

approvals requires specific findings. None of the specific findings associated with each approval 

is included with the Decision. Not only is it incumbent that these findings be included within the 

Decision, it must be clear which findings are associated with each approval. The failure of the 

Decision to property address the applicable criteria makes the decision invalid under Idaho law 

and leaves doubt about the efficacy of the action taken by the BOCC.  

 
6 Idaho Code § 67-6535(2)(b) (“The approval or denial of any application required or authorized pursuant to this 

chapter shall be in writing and accompanied by a reasoned statement that explains the criteria and standards considered 

relevant, states the relevant contested facts relied upon, and explains the rationale for the decision based on the 

applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan, relevant ordinance and statutory provisions, pertinent constitutional 

principles and factual information contained in the record.”).  



 

 

III. Conclusion. 

 

For the reasons outlined above, we respectfully request the BOCC reconsider this matter, 

zone the Property RN-5, and issue a Decision that comports with Idaho law.  
 

 

       Sincerely, 

       Elizabeth A. Koeckeritz  

 

 

 

cc. Torin Bjorklund, tborklund@tetoncountyidaho.gov 

 Jade Krueger, jkrueger@tetoncountyidaho.gov 

 Bailey Smith, baileysmith@tetoncountyidaho.gov 
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EXHIBIT A – Written Decision: Area of City Impact of Victor Update 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 


